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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


Board of Trustees 
Neighborhood Charter Schools 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Neighborhood Charter Schools, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated 
statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Neighborhood Charter Schools as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Neighborhood Charter Schools’ (formerly Neighborhood Charter School of Harlem) 
June 30, 2017 consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited 
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 24, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative 
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with 
the audited consolidated financial statements from which is has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 15, 2018 on our 
consideration of Neighborhood Charter Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Neighborhood Charter Schools’ internal control over other financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
October 15, 2018 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


June 30, 
ASSETS 2018 2017 

CURRENT ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents 
  Cash - capital reserve 
  Grants and other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

3,439,336$ 4,586,635$ 
1,500,000 235,000
538,100 267,417
280,254 66,431 

5,757,690 5,155,483 

OTHER ASSETS
  Property and equipment, net 
Facilities deposits 
Cash in escrow 

TOTAL ASSETS 

272,769 242,623
2,061,400 1,060,000
75,150 75,000 

2,409,319 1,377,623 

8,167,009$ 6,533,106$ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 448,995 $ 314,422 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 864,460 403,334
  Deferred revenue 10,417  -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,323,872 717,756 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 5,343,137 5,580,350 
Unrestricted - board designated 1,500,000 235,000 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 6,843,137 5,815,350 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 8,167,009 $ 6,533,106 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 
2018 2017 

Operating revenue and support:
 State and local per pupil
    operating revenue 
  Federal and State grants 
  Contributions 
  Special events 
  Other income 

$ 11,683,113 
950,952 
96,798 
24,133 
96,634 

$ 9,675,478 
654,454
25,989

-
41,406 

TOTAL OPERATING 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 12,851,630 10,397,327 

Expenses:
  Program services:
    Regular education 7,168,461 5,166,191
    Special education 3,411,088 3,349,897

  Supporting services:
    Management and general 1,234,155 325,450
    Fundraising and special events 10,139 1,087 

TOTAL EXPENSES 11,823,843 8,842,625 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,027,787 1,554,702 

Net assets at beginning of year 5,815,350 4,260,648 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 6,843,137 $ 5,815,350 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel
  Instructional personnel
  Non-instructional personnel
Total Salaries and wages

No. of 
positions 

17 
57 

7 
81 

Regular 
education 

$ 681,268 

2,730,244 

265,832 3,677,344 

Special 
education 

$ 326,897 
       1,305,147 
          129,069 
       1,761,113 

Program Services 

Year ended June 30, 
2018 

Fundraising Management 
and special and 

Sub-total events general Sub-total 

$ 1,008,165 $ 5,988 $ 452,731 $ 458,719 

4,035,391 

-

-

-
394,901 

428 
64,148 

64,576 

5,438,457 

6,416 
516,879 

523,295 

Supporting Services 

$ 

Total 

1,466,884 
4,035,391 

459,477 5,961,752 

$ 

2017 

Total 

761,623 

3,276,039 

382,975 4,420,637 

Fringe benefits & payroll taxes
Retirement
Legal service
Accounting/audit fees
Other purchased/professional/consulting services 
Building and land rent/lease
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies/Materials
Equipment/Furnishings
Staff development
Marketing/Recruitment
Technology
Food service
Office expense
Student services
Depreciation and amortization
Other

 $ 

1,091,589 

75,342 
13,243 

-

55,381 

498,042 
252,700 

26,066 
113,320 
221,354 

42,889 
189,632 

84,912 
86,283 
325,478 
106,027 

78,045 
145,778 

85,036 

7,168,461 $ 

 516,561 
            36,076 

-
-            26,482 

          238,481 
          121,002 
            12,482 

54,262 

          105,815 
            20,537 
            78,936 
            40,640 
            41,315 
          155,590 
            50,769 
            40,529 
            69,804 
            40,694 

3,411,088 

1,608,150 111,418 

13,243 

-
81,863 
736,523 
373,702 38,548 

167,582
 327,169 

63,426 

268,568 

125,552 127,598 
481,068 

156,796 

118,574 
215,582 
125,730 
$ 10,579,549 $ 

1,194 

121 

-
-

18 

797 
404 

42 
181 

-
69 
173 

98 
138 

-170 

-233 

85 

10,139 $ 

169,941 

10,879 

            39,726 

159,647 
113,979 

71,912 
            36,487 

3,764 
16,362 -6,193 

23,058 
8,805 

12,458 

-
15,309 -21,049 

7,707 

1,234,155 $ 

171,135 

11,000 
39,726 
159,647 
113,997 

72,709 
36,891 

3,806 
16,543 

-6,262   23,231 

8,903 
12,596 

-
15,479 

-
21,282 

7,792 1,244,294 

1,779,285 

122,418 

52,969 
159,647 195,860 

809,232 
410,593 

42,354 184,125 

327,169 

69,688 
291,799 
134,455 
140,194 
481,068 
172,275 
118,574 
236,864 
133,522 
$ 11,823,843 $ 

       1,250,251 

97,050 -

133,634 

271,419 
          734,400 

285,709 

33,750 
145,278 
          181,834 

40,903 

174,708 
            72,930 

37,874 
372,790 
170,922 
          152,258 
          235,489 

30,789 

8,842,625 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 
2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets $ 1,027,787 $ 1,554,702 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
    provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 236,864 235,489
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables (270,683) (161,731)
        Prepaid expenses (213,823) (2,546)
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses 134,573 160,795
        Accrued payroll and benefits 461,126 127,846
        Deferred revenue 10,417 (13,211) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,386,261 1,901,344 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment (267,010) (162,796)
  Change in cash - capital reserve (1,265,000) 800,000
  Change in cash in escrow (150) -
  Deposits (1,001,400) (800,000) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,533,560) (162,796) 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,147,299) 1,738,548 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,586,635 2,848,087 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 3,439,336 $ 4,586,635 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Neighborhood Charter Schools 
(the “School”) and Friends of NCSH, Inc. (“Friends”), (collectively referred to as the “Organization”). The 
Organizations are presenting consolidated financial statements because they have a common Board of Trustees 
and economic interest. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

The Organization 
During 2018, the name of the School was officially changed from Neighborhood Charter School of Harlem to 
Neighborhood Charter Schools. The School is a New York State, not-for-profit educational corporation that 
was incorporated on September 13, 2011 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 56 of the Educational 
Law of the State of New York. The School operates one charter school, Neighborhood Charter School of 
Harlem (“NCSH”). During 2017, the School determined it would open a second charter school, Neighborhood 
Charter School: Bronx (“NCSB”). 

NCSH was granted a provisional charter on September 13, 2011, valid for a term of five years and renewable 
upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. On March 13, 2017, the 
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York granted NCSH a provisional charter valid for a 
term of five years through June 30, 2022 and renewable upon expiration. 

NCSH opened its doors in the fall of 2012 in Harlem, New York with a rigorous academic program and a 
highly structured and supportive school culture. NCSH serves a wide range of students, including students with 
disabilities and students whose native language is not English, drawn mostly from central Harlem, the 
community school district in which it is located. It offers a specialized inclusion program for students with 
high-functioning autism, who constitute approximately 15% of the student body. 

During 2017, the School applied for a charter for NCSB which will be located in Bronx, New York. NCSB was 
granted a provisional charter on November 14, 2017, valid for a term of five years and renewable upon 
expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York.  

The mission of NCSB is to provide children in the Bronx with new educational opportunities through a 
rigorous, comprehensive K-8 program that cultivates the intellectual, social and emotional development of each 
child. In July 2018, NCSB began its planning year and is set to open in the fall of 2019. 

Friends was organized under the laws of the State of New York on December 11, 2009 as a not-for-profit 
corporation under subparagraph (a)(5) of Section 102 of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law as Friends of 
NEST Charter School, Inc. Friends was formed to provide funding and administrative assistance to promote 
the application for a charter school, to provide ongoing financial and volunteer support for such school and to 
engage in any and all activities reasonably related to such purpose. Effective June 28, 2013, this organization 
changed its name to Friends of NCSH, Inc. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Financial Statement presentation 
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP). The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three 
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net 
assets. 

These classes of net assets are defined as follows: 

Permanently restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be 
fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Organization. The Organization had no permanently 
restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Temporarily restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled 
and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations. The Organization had no 
temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Unrestricted – The net assets over which the Governing Board has discretionary control to use in carrying on 
the Organization’s operations in accordance with the guidelines established by the Organization. The Board 
may designate portions of the current unrestricted net assets for specific purposes, projects or investment. At 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Governing Board had designated $1,500,000 and $235,000, respectively, of 
unrestricted net assets to fund capital projects. 

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and based on the number 
of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Organization when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. 

Contributions 
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily or permanently restricted support depending on 
the existence of any donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and expended in the same year for a 
specific purpose is classified as unrestricted revenue. 

Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. 

- 10 -



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   

 
   

 
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
        

  
     

  
 

 
  

 
 

 

  
 

   
    

     
   

 

   
 

  
 

 
   

    

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, including bank deposit accounts and certain money market accounts, are maintained 
at financial institutions located in New York and are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up 
to $250,000 at each institution. In the normal course of business, the cash account balances at any given time 
may exceed insured limits. However, the Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and 
does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash and cash equivalents. 

$1,500,000 and $235,000 has been segregated on the consolidated statement of financial position at June 30, 
2018 and 2017, respectively, representing the board designated net assets for capital reserve. 

Cash in escrow 
The School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of their charter agreement. The 
amount in escrow as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $75,150 and $75,000, respectively. The escrow is 
restricted to fund legal and other costs related to the dissolution of the School. 

Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of 
individual receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has 
used reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no 
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-
line method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which 
range from two to five years.   

Tax exempt status 
The School and Friends are tax-exempt organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, are exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The School and Friends file Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. Friends also files in New 
York State.  The tax returns for  the years ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2018 are still subject to 
potential audit by the IRS. Management of the School and Friends believes it has no material uncertain tax 
positions and, accordingly it will not recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Contributed services 
The Organization receives contributed services from volunteers to serve on the Board of Trustees. The 
Organization received transportation services, nursing services, and occupational and physical therapy services 
from the local district.  The Organization was unable to determine a value for these services. 

Marketing costs 
The Organization expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $134,000 and $73,000 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,  
Cont’d 

Deferred revenue 
The Organization records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, at 
which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Comparatives for year ended June 30, 2017 
The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total 
but not by net asset or functional classification.  Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute 
a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived. 

Subsequent events 
The Organization has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through October 15, 2018, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted, except as disclosed in Note H. 

NOTE B: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

June 30, 
2018 2017 

Furniture and fixtures 379,399$ $ 269,381 
Computers and equipment 276,657 201,370 
Leasehold improvements 551,325 469,620 

1,207,381 940,371 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 934,612 697,748 

272,769$ $ 242,623 

Total depreciation expense was $236,864 and $235,489 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE C: SCHOOL FACILITY
	

Effective July 1, 2012, the School entered into a two-year lease for its facilities through June 30, 2014. This 
lease was subsequently amended to include additional space for total base rent of $289,000 for the year ended 
June 30, 2014. Total approximate square footage as of June 30, 2014 was 14,775. During 2014, the School 
entered into a one year renewal through June 30, 2015 where base rent was increased to $480,000 per annum, 
payable in equal monthly installments of $40,000 beginning July 1, 2014. Total approximate square footage as 
of June 30, 2015 was 18,500. In 2015, the School exercised its option to renew the lease for an additional two 
years, through June 30, 2017. The renewal called for base rent equal to the greater of 103% of the prior year’s 
rent or the prior year's rent plus $1,000 per each additional student enrolled as of a specified date. $40,000 of 
deposits are related to this lease. In 2017, the School received an option to renew for an additional two years, 
through June 30, 2019. The renewal calls for base rent of 3% over the prior year’s rent. In 2018, the School 
exercised their option to renew the lease through June 30, 2019. 

During 2015, the School entered into a lease for an additional facility (NCSH North Campus) to accommodate 
growth and to be occupied starting July 1, 2015. The lease called for base rent of $120,000 with an option to 
extend. During 2016, the Charter School exercised its option to extend with base rent of $240,000 for the year 
ending June 30, 2017 and base rent of $300,000 for the year ending June 30, 2018. During 2018, the School 
exercised its option to extend with base rent of $312,000 for the year ending June 30, 2019. $20,000 of deposits 
are related to this lease. 

During 2014, the School entered into a twenty-year lease for a new facility to be constructed which will 
commence the later of July 1, 2015 or the time of occupancy. The lease was amended in 2015 and 2016. The 
lease calls for base rent of $1,394,000 per annum with annual rent increases of 3% per year. $1,001,400 of 
deposits relate to this lease, which are being used to help fund the cost of the new building. Upon completion 
of construction, $348,500 will be retained as a security deposit which represents three months of the base rent. 
A rent abatement of $651,500 will then be credited to the tenant which will be applied to the installments of the 
base rent until exhausted beginning with the commencement of the lease.  Occupancy has not occurred as of the 
report date. 

During 2018, the School entered into a twenty-year lease for an additional facility to accommodate NCSB, 
commencing no later than July 31, 2019. For the period July 31, 2019 to July 31, 2022, the School will lease 
26,000 square feet, increasing to 39,000 square feet by July 31, 2023 and 58,000 square feet through July 31, 
2039. The lease calls for rent at $38 per square foot through July 31, 2023 at which point rent increases to $42 
per square foot with subsequent annual increases of 2% per year. The School also has a buyout option for 
leasehold improvements no later than July 31, 2026. In connection with the lease, the School obtained a 
$1,000,000 irrevocable standby letter of credit with a bank to serve as a security deposit. The irrevocable 
standby letter of credit is included in deposits on the accompanying statement of financial position at June 30, 
2018. 

During 2018, the New York City Department of Education granted the School dedicated space (North Annex 
Facility) located at 500 West 138th Street, New York, New York at no charge. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE C: SCHOOL FACILITY, Cont’d
	

The future minimum payments for these agreements for base rent, assuming occupancy on July 1, 2019 of the 

NCSB facility and assuming occupancy on July 1, 2019 of the new facility and abatements of $651,500 being 

utilized in 2019, a 3% increase per year and offsets of security deposits according to the current lease
	
agreements, as described above, are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

$ 836,509 
2,382,000 
2,423,820 
2,466,895 
3,005,261 
77,320,626 

$ 88,435,111 

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was approximately $809,000 and $734,000, 
respectively. 

NOTE D: OPERATING LEASE 

The Organization has entered into certain non-cancelable lease agreements for office equipment expiring at 
various dates through November 2022.  The future minimum payments on these agreements are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 50,640 
2020 45,564 
2021 29,201 
2022 27,336 
2023 11,390 

$ 164,131 

NOTE E: RETIREMENT PLAN 

The School sponsors a 401(k) retirement plan (the “Plan”) covering most employees. The School matches 
employees’ contributions up to 3% of their annual salaries. The School’s total contribution to the Plan for the 
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 approximated $119,000 and $97,000, respectively. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE F: CONTINGENCY
	

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in 
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Organization. Management is of the opinion that 
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential 
claims. 

NOTE G: CONCENTRATIONS 

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, 98% and 81%, respectively, of grants and other receivables are due from New York 
State. 

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, approximately 91% and 93%, respectively, of total operating 
revenue and support came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set 
annually by the State based on the school district in which the School’s students are located. 

NOTE H: SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In August 2018, the New York State Education Department (NYSED) notified the School that it had over-
allocated $42,825 in Title IIA funding to the School for the year ended June 30, 2018.  NYSED will reduce the 
School’s Title IIA funding for a period of up to five years to recoup the over-allocated funding.  The School has 
not accounted for this over-allocated funding as a liability as of June 30, 2018. 
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OTHER CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION 




 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
     

   
   
   

  
   

    
     

  
       

         
      

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Board of Trustees 
Neighborhood Charter Schools 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neighborhood Charter Schools as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and we have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 2018, which contained an 
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The 2018 consolidating financial 
information hereinafter is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used  to prepare the  consolidated financial  
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to 
the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, as a whole. 

Rochester, New York 
October 15, 2018 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2018 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents 
  Cash - capital reserve 
  Grants and other receivables 
  Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

OTHER ASSETS
  Property and equipment, net 
  Facilities deposits 
  Cash in escrow 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 
  Deferred revenue 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Neighborhood Friends of 
Charter Schools NCSH, Inc. 

3,232,900 $ 206,436$ 
1,500,000 -
650,736 -
280,254 -

5,663,890 206,436 

272,769 -
2,061,400 -
75,150  -

2,409,319 -

8,073,209$ 206,436 $ 

448,995$ 112,636$ 
864,460 -
10,417  -

1,323,872 112,636 

Eliminations 

-$ 
-

(112,636) 
-

(112,636) 

-
-
-

-

(112,636) $ 

(112,636) $ 
-
-

(112,636) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

3,439,336 
1,500,000
538,100
280,254 

5,757,690 

272,769
2,061,400
75,150 

2,409,319 

8,167,009 

448,995 
864,460
10,417 

1,323,872 

NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

6,749,337 93,800

8,073,209$ 206,436 $ 

-

(112,636) $ $ 

6,843,137 

8,167,009 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 


Operating revenue and support:

  State and local per pupil 

operating revenue 

  Federal and State grants 

  Contributions 

  Special events 

  Other income 

Total operating revenue and support 

Neighborhood 

Charter Schools 

11,683,113$ 

950,952 

31,078 

11,220 
96,407 

12,772,770 

$ 

Friends of 

NCSH, Inc. 

-

-

65,720 

12,913 

227 

78,860 

Eliminations 

-$ 

-

-

-

-

-

Total 

$ 11,683,113

950,952

96,798

24,133
96,634 

12,851,630 

Expenses:

  Program services:

   Regular education 

   Special education 

7,116,318 

3,411,088 

52,143 

-

-

-

7,168,461

3,411,088

  Supporting services:

   Management and general 

   Fundraising and special events 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

1,234,155 
10,139

11,771,700 

-
-

52,143 

-
-

-

1,234,155
10,139 

11,823,843 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,001,070 26,717 - 1,027,787 

Net assets at beginning of year 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 

5,748,267 
6,749,337 $ $ 

67,083 
93,800 

-
-$ 

5,815,350 
6,843,137 $ 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
	



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
   

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

  

 
 

     
 

       
   

       
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
 

Board of Trustees 
Neighborhood Charter Schools 

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Neighborhood Charter Schools, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated 
statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Neighborhood Charter Schools’ 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Neighborhood Charter Schools’ internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Neighborhood Charter Schools’ internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.    

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Neighborhood Charter Schools’ consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Neighborhood Charter Schools in a separate letter 
dated October 15, 2018. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
October 15, 2018 
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NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOLS 


SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 


SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Finding 2017-001 

Statement of condition 
During our audit, we noted one instance where proper expense cutoff was not achieved. Proper cutoffs are critical 
for the accuracy of the accrual basis of accounting. This error resulted in a significant auditor adjustment. 

Criteria and effect of conditions 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require revenues and expenses be 
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Proper cut-off was not properly achieved which resulted in 
expenses being understated.  

Recommendation 
We recommend the School revisit its accounting policies and procedures to ensure proper cutoff of expenses. 

Management’s response 
Management will ensure that all invoices are booked in the period the expenses are incurred, in accordance with 
accrual based accounting practices. 

Current Status 
During the 2018 audit, no significant auditor adjustments were necessary. 
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Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: Neighborhood Charter Schools 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #5 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Sherita Smith 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: Mengel, Metzger, Barr & Co. LLP 
School Audit Contact Name: 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter 

Management Letter Response 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) 

Corrective Action Plan 





   
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

Neighborhood Charter Schools 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

3,439,336 
538,100 

-
280,254 

-
1,500,000 
5,757,690 

272,769 
-

2,061,400 
75,150 

2,409,319 

8,167,009 

$ 

$ 

2017 

4,586,635 
267,417 

-
66,431 

-
235,000 

5,155,483 

242,623 
-

1,060,000 
75,000 

1,377,623 

6,533,106 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

448,995 
864,460 

-
-
-

10,417 
-

1,323,872 

-
-
-
-
-

1,323,872 

$ 

$ 

314,422 
403,334 

-
-
-
-
-

717,756 

-
-
-
-
-

717,756 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 6,843,137 
-
-

6,843,137 

$ 5,815,350 
-
-

5,815,350 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 8,167,009 6,533,106 



   
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         

Neighborhood Charter Schools
 
Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

Unrestricted 

2018 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total 
2017 

Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

6,835,675 
4,322,929 

524,509 
467,738 

34,138 

449,076 
12,634,065 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 6,835,675 
4,322,929 

524,509 
467,738 

34,138 
-

449,076 
12,634,065 

5,434,570 
3,731,676 

509,232 
300,284 

26,322 

327,848 
10,329,932 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 7,168,461 
3,411,088 

-
10,579,549 

1,234,155 
10,139 

11,823,843 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 7,168,461 
3,411,088 

-
10,579,549 

1,234,155 
10,139 

11,823,843 

$ 5,166,191 
3,349,897 

-
8,516,088 

325,450 
1,087 

8,842,625 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 810,222 - 810,222 1,487,307 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 
Other Support and Revenue 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ 96,634 
96,798 
24,133 

-
-
-

217,565 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 96,634 
96,798 
24,133 

-
-
-

217,565 

$ 41,406 
25,989 

-
-
-
-

67,395 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ -

1,027,787 

$ -

-

$ -

1,027,787 

$ -

1,554,702 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 5,815,350 $ - $ 5,815,350 $ 4,260,648 



   

         

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - - -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 6,843,137 $ - $ 6,843,137 $ 5,815,350
�



   
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Neighborhood Charter Schools 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 1,027,787 $ 1,554,702 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 236,864 235,489 
Grants Receivable (270,683) (161,731) 
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses (213,823) (2,546) 
Accounts Payable 134,573 160,795 
Accrued Expenses 461,126 127,846 
Accrued Liabilities - -
Contributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue 10,417 (13,211) 
Interest payments - -
Other - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,386,261 $ 1,901,344 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ $ 
Purchase of equipment (267,010) (162,796) 
Other (2,266,550) -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (2,533,560) $ (162,796) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (1,147,299) $ 1,738,548 
Cash at beginning of year 4,586,635 2,848,087 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 3,439,336 $ 4,586,635 



   
     

     

   
 

 
          

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

Neighborhood Charter Schools 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 

Special 
Education 

Other 
Educatio 

Total 

2018 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

Total  Total 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 
Total Expenses 

17.00 
57.00 

7.00 
81.00 

$ 
681,268 

2,730,244 
265,832 

3,677,344 
1,091,589 

75,342 
-

13,243 
-

55,381 

498,042 
252,700 

26,066 
113,320 
221,354 

42,889 
189,632 

84,912 
86,283 

325,478 
78,045 

106,027 
145,778 
85,036 

$ 7,168,461 

$ 
326,897 

1,305,147 
129,069 

1,761,113 
516,561 

36,076 
-
-
-

26,482 

238,481 
121,002 

12,482 
54,262 

105,815 
20,537 
78,936 
40,640 
41,315 

155,590 
40,529 
50,769 

69804 
40,694 

$ 3,411,088 

$ 

$ 

n 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

$ 

1,008,165 
4,035,391 

394,901 
5,438,457 
1,608,150 

111,418 
-

13,243 
-

81,863 

736,523 
373,702 

38,548 
167,582 
327,169 

63,426 
268,568 
125,552 
127,598 
481,068 
118,574 
156,796 
215,582 
125,730 

10,579,549 

$ 
5,988 

-
428 

6,416 
1,194 

121 
-
-
-

18 

797 
404 

42 
181 

-
69 

173 
98 

138 
-
-

170 
233 
85 

$ 10,139 

$ 
452,731 

-
64,148 

516,879 
169,941 

10,879 
-

39,726 
159,647 
113,979 

71,912 
36,487 

3,764 
16,362 

-
6,193 

23,058 
8,805 

-
15,309 
21,049 
7,707 

$ 1,234,155 

$ 

$ 

458,719 
-

64,576 
523,295 
171,135 

11,000 
-

39,726 
159,647 
113,997 

72,709 
36,891 

3,806 
16,543 

-
6,262 

23,231 
8,903 

12,596 
-
-

15,479 
21,282 
7,792 

1,244,294 

$ 

$ 

1,466,884 
4,035,391 

459,477 
5,961,752 
1,779,285 

122,418 
-

52,969 
159,647 
195,860 

809,232 
410,593 

42,354 
184,125 
327,169 

69,688 
291,799 
134,455 
140,194 
481,068 
118,574 
172,275 
236,864 
133,522 

11,823,843 

12,458 
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2017 

$ 
761,623 

3,276,039 
382,975 

4,420,637 
1,250,251 

97,050 
-
-

133,634 
271,419 

734,400 
285,709 

33,750 
145,278 
181,834 

40,903 
174,708 

72,930 
37,874 

372,790 
152,258 
170,922 
235,489 
30,789 

$ 8,842,625 
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October  15,  2018
	

To the Board of Trustees 
Neighborhood Charter Schools 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Neighborhood Charter Schools 
(the “Charter School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable 
as defined as follows: 

	 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less 
than likely. 

	 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this letter 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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During the course of our audit of the financial statements of the Charter School as of June 30, 2018 and for the 
year then ended, we observed the Charter School’s significant accounting policies and procedures and certain 
business, financial and administrative practices. As a result of our observations, we suggest you consider the 
following comments which we do not consider to be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses: 

Purchasing Procedures 
During the 2018 audit, we noted purchase pre-approvals were not obtained for purchases made using the Charter 
School’s debit card and PayPal account. Subsequent payment approval was made via Bill.com. Further, we 
noted one debit card expenditure exceeded the $5,000 maximum as detailed in the Financial Policies and 
Procedures Manual. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School adhere to its Financial Policies and Procedures Manual and utilize 
purchase pre-approval forms. This will prevent the risk of unauthorized purchases. Given the instantaneous 
nature of debit card and PayPal transactions, subsequent payment approval would not prevent payment of a 
potentially unauthorized charge. 

Board Approval of Bank Account Change 
During our audit, we noted there were discussions in the board minutes for moving the Charter School's banking 
to Signature Bank; however, there was no formal board approval to open the accounts as is required by the 
Financial Policies and Procedures Manual until June 2018, after the funds were transferred to Signature Bank. 

Recommendation 
We suggest formal board approval be obtained whenever required by the Financial Policies and Procedures 
Manual and be documented in board meeting minutes. 

Status of matters included in our letter as of June 30, 2017, dated October 24, 2017 

Significant Auditor Adjustment 
During our audit, we noted one instance where proper expense cutoff was not achieved. Proper cutoffs are 
critical for the accuracy of the accrual basis of accounting. This error resulted in a significant auditor 
adjustment. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School revisit its accounting policies and procedures to ensure proper cutoff of 
expenses. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During the 2018 audit, no significant auditor adjustments were necessary. 
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Grant Accounting 
During our audit, we noted the Charter School had not properly tracked some expenditures incurred in 
connection with a certain grant. 

Recommendation 
We suggest in order to ensure compliance with specific grant terms, as well as consistency of reporting for 
all grant agreements, that appropriate personnel review grant agreements on a timely basis and establish 
documented and consistent procedures pertaining to the appropriate accounting for all grants. We believe 
that this process will make accounting for grants an easier and more routine task. This would also achieve 
more consistent accounting and financial statement presentation. 

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During the 2018 audit, we noted no issues with grant compliance or grant reporting. 

* * * * * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management, the Finance Committee and 
the Board of Trustees and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s consolidated financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact 
Michelle Cain or Kevin Kopp. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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11/01/2018 05:33:21 PM (ET) 

Activity - Deposit Accounts
	
Report created: 
Account:  • Savings • ESCROW • Available $75,225.74 
Date range: 10/19/2018 to 11/1/2018 
Transaction types: All transactions 
Detail option: Includes transaction detail 

026013576 •  Savings • ESCROW • Available $75,225.74 

Additional CalculatedPost Date Reference Description Debit CreditReference Balance 
10/31/2018 INTEREST PAID $19.16 $75,225.74 

http:75,225.74


EFGHIJKLJMNFOFPNOQJRSHTNPSUJVWFGOPGJXFYWHZOGNWF
 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstustvsrw 

xpypzON{P|}~���PMzSP�Q��M��P���PMQO�����pSPN�����NPN��Q�SPpzOp�PO�pP��zMz��M�P��zOM�OP�z����MO��z
�p�QpNOpSPMzSPQR��MSPO�pP�zSpRpzSpzOPMQS�O���NP�pR��OPMzSP�zOp�zM�P��zO���NP�pR��ONPMNP�zpP���.�zpS
���p/ 

[EX\]^_`]__aJVRJ_MJ]b`cEdJe`E\E[fRgRSPGNWFJ]SOLNFh 

ijJRPkWWQJ^OUSLJMNUPOQJVWFGOPGJXFYWHZOGNWF 

0�����P�MNpSP1�N�M�P~�zOM�O 0�����P�MNpSP1�N�M�P~�zOM�O 0�����P�MNpSP1�N�M�P~�zOM�O
|M�p 2��zp ��M�� 

0�p��OMP0��O� 

ljJb1LNGJMNHZJVWFGOPGJXFYWHZOGNWF 

0�����PEQS�OP~�zOM�O 0�����PEQS�OP~�zOM�O 0�����PEQS�OP~�zOM�O }pM�NPF��G�zyPF�O�
|M�p ��M�� 2��zp H��NPEQS�OP1��� 

I���p��pPI/P~M�z{P~2E B 

2jJXYJO33QNPO4QS5J3QSOUSJ3HWTNLSJPWFGOPGJNFYWHZOGNWFJYWHJGkSJUPkWWQ2UJW1GUW1HPSL 

YNFOFPNOQJUSHTNPSUJYNHZj 

1���P|M�p	 ~�zOM�O IM���zy ��M�� 2��zp }pM�NPK�O�
2p�N�z ESS�pNN 1��� 

~�M�Op�
0����� ��zzM A�QN�zpNN Fp.NOp� 
IMzMyp�pzO 

12321
 



    
          

  

     

           

     
     
                

  

            
          

   

               
            

           
            

New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
­

Board of Regents
­

2018-19 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 
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Neighborhood Charter School of Harlem
­
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019
­

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019
­
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

9,598,514 5,455,143 
9,005,805 5,455,406 

592,709 (263) 
413 147 

- -

OTHER 

-
-
-

FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

- -
23,397 317,131 

(23,397) (317,131) 

TOTAL 

15,053,657 
14,801,739 

251,918 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
District of Location $15,307.00 
School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

8,571,920 4,760,159 
- -
- -
- -
- -

8,571,920 4,760,159 

-
-
-
-
-

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

13,332,079 
-
-
-
-

13,332,079 

Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
Other 

Other State Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

Other Federal Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- -

162,666 89,894 
337,819 186,689 

- -
9,072,404 5,036,743 

- 127,656 
65,449 36,169 

4,291 2,371 
320,550 177,146 

- -
- -
- -

390,290 343,343 

- -
58,814 32,503 
12,881 7,119 

- -
- -

30,297 16,743 
33,826 18,694 

135,819 75,058 

9,598,514 5,455,143 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

-

252,560 
524,508 

-
14,109,147 

127,656 
101,619 

6,662 
497,696 

-
-
-

733,633 

-
91,317 
20,000 

-
-

47,040 
52,520 

210,877 

15,053,657 

EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 154,000 55,000 - 4,400 6,600 220,000 
Instructional Management 3.00 238,305 131,695 - - - 370,000 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 12.00 685,288 378,712 - - - 1,064,000 
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Neighborhood Charter School of Harlem 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 9,598,514 5,455,143 - - -

Total Expenses 9,005,805 5,455,406 - 23,397 317,131 
Net Income 592,709 (263) - (23,397) (317,131) 

Actual Student Enrollment 413 147 
Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

TOTAL 

15,053,657 
14,801,739 

251,918 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 107,800 38,500 - 3,080 4,620 
Operation / Business Manager 2.00 110,780 61,220 - - -
Administrative Staff 10.00 477,075 217,600 - 6,730 10,095 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 29 1,773,248 882,727 14,210 21,315 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 19.00 1,314,625 - - -
Teachers - SPED 19.00 - 1,321,713 - - -
Substitute Teachers - - - - - -
Teaching Assistants 6.00 192,576 106,424 - - -
Specialty Teachers 26.00 1,115,802 616,628 - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 14.00 604,296 333,953 - - -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 84 3,227,300 2,378,717 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 113 5,000,547 3,261,445 14,210 21,315 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 487,526 260,460 - 1,582 32,253 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 1,009,632 547,655 - 1,818 37,066 
Retirement / Pension 157,681 84,241 - 512 10,432 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,654,839 892,355 3,912 79,751 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 6,655,386 4,153,800 18,122 101,066 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit - - - - 102,941 
Legal 625 - - - 1,875 
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch 378,191 209,000 - - -
Payroll Services - - - - -
Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - 3,750 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 13,522 7,224 - 44 895 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 392,338 216,224 44 109,461 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

154,000 
172,000 
711,500 

2,691,500 

1,314,625 
1,321,713 

-
299,000 

1,732,430 
-

938,249 
-

5,606,017 

-
-
-
-
-

8,297,517 

781,820 
1,596,171 

252,866 
2,630,857 

10,928,374 

102,941 
2,500 

-
-

587,192 
-
-

3,750 
21,685 

718,068 
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Neighborhood Charter School of Harlem 

Board Expenses - - - - - -
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 147,839 81,701 - - - 229,540 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks - - - - - -
Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Telephone - - - - - -
Technology 86,459 46,191 - 281 5,720 138,651 
Student Testing & Assessment 45,085 24,915 - - - 70,000 
Field Trips 50,559 27,941 - - - 78,500 
Transportation (student) 966 534 - - - 1,500 
Student Services - other 72,619 40,131 - - - 112,750 
Office Expense 129,624 69,252 - 421 8,575 207,872 
Staff Development 126,446 100,459 - 410 8,365 235,680 
Staff Recruitment 15,901 8,495 - 52 1,052 25,500 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 107,582 58,020 - 253 5,157 171,012 
School Meals / Lunch - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) - - - - - -
Fundraising - - - - - -
Other 45,284 24,195 147 2,997 72,623 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 828,365 481,833 1,564 31,866 1,343,628 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 39,595 21,154 - 129 2,619 63,497 
Janitorial - - - - - -
Building and Land Rent / Lease 521,627 278,679 - 1,693 34,509 836,508 
Repairs & Maintenance 269,678 144,075 - 875 17,841 432,469 
Equipment / Furniture 26,009 13,895 - 84 1,721 41,709 
Security - - - - - -
Utilities 86,225 46,066 - 280 5,704 138,275 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 943,135 503,868 3,061 62,394 1,512,458 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 186,581 99,680 - 606 12,344 299,211 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 9,005,805 5,455,406 23,397 317,131 14,801,739 

NET INCOME 592,709 (263) - (23,397) (317,131) 251,918 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

District of Location 413 147 560 
School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 9,598,514 5,455,143 - - - 15,053,657 
Total Expenses 9,005,805 5,455,406 - 23,397 317,131 14,801,739 

Net Income 592,709 (263) - (23,397) (317,131) 251,918 
Actual Student Enrollment 413 147 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

     
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Neighborhood Charter School of Harlem 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 413 147 560 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 23,241 37,110 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 21,806 37,112 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 9,598,514 5,455,143 - - - 15,053,657 
Total Expenses 9,005,805 5,455,406 - 23,397 317,131 14,801,739 

Net Income 592,709 (263) - (23,397) (317,131) 251,918 
Actual Student Enrollment 413 147 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

         

 
   

   

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

Executive Director 
Principal & Assistant Principals 
Deans, Directors, & Coordinators 



  
     

 

 
 

 
 

    

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Chief Operations Officer 
Business Manager & Director of Operations 
Operations Associates 

GenEd Teachers 
SpEd Teachers 

Teaching Assistants 
Specialty Teachers 

Speech pathologists, Security, counselors, psychologist 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 
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Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

August 30, 2017 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
School: Harlem (the “School”) was held on Wednesday, August 30, 2017 at 132 West 124th 

Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:05 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Brian Hamilton 
Jefferson Hughes 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Allison Mayne Peters 
Ruth Meyler 
Adam Rashid 
Arthur Sadoff 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 

Trustees Absent (with prior notice): 
Gail Brousal 
Derek Fleming 
Andrew Popper 

Others in Attendance (those noted with an * were in attendance for only the first ten 
minutes of the meeting): 
Amanda Bowman 
Brett Gallini 
Deyvis Salazar 
Kelly Scott * 
Laura Walsh * 
Mahelia Mighty * 
Michael Renda 
Nick Carton * 
Sherita Smith 
Starr Peoples 

Ten (10) of the thirteen (13) trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the 
meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome 

Ms Soussloff welcomed the board and staff to the meeting.
 
Mr. Gallini introduced the school-based leadership team and the network team to the Board.
 
Ms. Soussloff invited public comment.  No comments were received
 



 
  

 

 
  

 
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

2. Approval of minutes: 

Ms. Soussloff brought to attention two typos in the draft minutes circulated before the meeting. 
A motion to approve the minutes from the June 28, 2017 board meeting with the two corrections 
was made by Mr. Schneider, seconded by Ms. Kavanagh, and was unanimously approved. 

3. Board meeting schedule: 

Ms. Soussloff proposed that the Board formally add meetings in December and July to comply 
with the Open Meetings Law. Discussion ensued. The Board unanimously agreed to add 
meetings in December and July. 

4. Neighborhood Charter School: Bronx Application 

Ms. Soussloff updated the Board on the status of the Bronx charter. The application was 
submitted on August 18, 2017; Ms. Soussloff expects a reply from the State Regents office in 
mid-November. Ms. Soussloff informed the Board that as part of the application, the Board 
would need to take part in a capacity interview in Albany in late September. Discussion ensued. 

5. Staff Presentation Topics 

Mr. Gallini presented the Board with a list of the planned staff presentations to the Board for the 
2017-2018 school year. Trustees were invited to suggest additional topics throughout the year.  
Ms. Meyler and Mr. Rashid asked Mr. Gallini about plans for sharing school data regularly with 
the Board and the Board’s Accountability Committee. Discussion ensued. The Board and Mr. 
Gallini agreed that the School will send a data dashboard to the Board’s Accountability 
Committee monthly; the Board at-large will receive the dashboard at least quarterly. 

6. Board Committee Assignments 

Ms. Soussloff distributed the proposed committee assignments for the 2017-2018 school year. A 
motion to approve the following committee assignments was made, seconded and unanimously 
approved: 

Executive Committee, comprised of Officers of the Board:
 
Chair: Patricia Soussloff, Vice Chair: Jeff Hughes, Secretary: Cliff Schneider, Treasurer:
 
Adam Rashid
 

Finance Committee:
 
Adam Rashid (Chair), Derek Fleming, Jeff Hughes
 

Accountability Committee:
 
Gail Brousal (Chair), Tena Kavanagh, Andrew Popper
 

Evaluation Task Force: 



 
 

   
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

 
 

  
 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
  

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

Cliff Schneider (Chair), Patricia Soussloff 

Governance Committee:
 
Ruth Meyler (Chair), Everardo Jefferson, Arthur Sadoff, Brian Hamilton
 

7. Network Update, Test Score Review, Employee Manual Revision 

Mr. Gallini presented on the current projects of the network team, including the School’s bonus 
program for teachers and construction and real estate management. Mr. Gallini also presented on 
the School’s test scores for the 2016-2017 school year. Discussion ensued. 

Presentation of the employee manual was tabled until the next board meeting. 

8. Principal Updates 

Mr. Salazar gave the Board highlights on opening day and an overview of his academic goals for 
the 2017-2018 school year. Mr. Salazar highlighted the different strategies used by the School to 
collect student data. Discussion ensued. 

9. Facilities 

Ms. Smith gave the Board updates on: repairs made at the Northwest campus, the progress of the 
new School site at 691 St Nicholas, and the search for real estate for Neighborhood Charter 
School: Bronx. Ms. Smith outlined the network’s search for a Project Manager to handle 
construction at 691 St. Nicholas and future construction in the Bronx. 

10. Gala 

Ms. Soussloff detailed expectations for Board members for the upcoming gala hosted by the 
Board, taking place on October 11, 2017. 

11. Board Survey 

Ms. Meyler informed the Board that each member would shortly receive a self-evaluation form 
to evaluate their individual effectiveness as a trustee. 

12. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the board meeting was adjourned at 7:50 PM. 



 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of the Neighborhood Charter School of Harlem, a 
New York education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the 
above is a true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 
said corporation held on August 30, 2017. 
Dated:  2017 



    
        

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 

Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

September 27, 2017 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
School: Harlem (the “School”) was held on Wednesday, September 27, 2017 at 132 West 124th 

Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:04 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brousal 
Derek Fleming 
Brian Hamilton 
Jefferson Hughes 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Allison Mayne Peters 
Ruth Meyler 
Andrew Popper 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 
Trustees Absent (with prior notice): 
Adam Rashid 
Arthur Sadoff 
Others in Attendance: 
Amanda Bowman 
Brett Gallini 
Naureen Kheraj 
Starr Peoples 
Deyvis Salazar 
Sherita Smith 
Cory Stort 

Eleven (11) of the thirteen (13) trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the 
meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment.  No comments were received. 

2. Minutes 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes from the August 30, 2017 board 
meeting and was unanimously approved. 

3. Nominating and Governance Update 



 

   
  

 
  

 

   
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

 
  

 

 
  

   
         

 
 

  
 

    
 

 
  

 
 

   
 

 
 

  
 

  

Ms. Meyler solicited feedback on the recent Board of Trustees’ annual self-evaluation survey. 
Various comments were expressed. 

4. Application for NCS Bronx Board Capacity Interview with SED 

Ms. Soussloff led a discussion on the upcoming Board capacity interview for Neighborhood 
Charter School: Bronx. Discussion ensued. 

5. Network Update 

Mr. Gallini provided updates for the Board on the work of the Network, including his search for 
banks offering better service and interest rates from the one we currently use. Mr. Gallini 
presented proposals from three banks.  It was agreed that Mr. Gallini would follow up with the 
Finance Committee on how to move forward. 

6. Principal Update 

Mr. Salazar provided updates for the Board on school enrollment, assessment of scholar reading 
levels, intervention plans, and general academic concerns. Mr. Salazar explained plans to 
enhance English Language Arts assessments for middle schoolers. 

7. Facilities Update 

Ms. Smith provided the Board with updates on facilities issues at the Northwest campus, 
progress on the 691 St. Nicholas site, and the search for real estate in the Bronx. Ms. Smith 
informed the Board that the School has hired a project manager to oversee construction progress 
at 691 St. Nicholas and to manage real estate needs for NCS: Bronx. Discussion ensued.  Ms. 
Smith will reach out to the Real Estate Task Force to meet in October with the School’s realtors 
and the project manager. 

8. Development Task Force 

Ms. Kavanagh updated the board on guest attendance and fundraising for the October 19 Gala.  
Discussion ensued. 

9. Executive Session 

At 7:25 PM a motion was made by Mr. Schneider, and seconded by Ms. Brousal, to enter into 
executive session to discuss a personnel matter. The motion was unanimously approved. All 
staff and visitors present left the room.  At the end of the executive session a motion was made, 
seconded and unanimously approved to return to the plenary meeting.  

10. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the Board meeting was adjourned at 7:40 PM. 



  

 

    

       
 

  
 

             
                

        
 

    
  

 
  

  
  

   
  

  
  

  
 

    
  

  
  

 
  

 
 

          
             

 
    

              
            

            
             

 
  

 

Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

October 25, 2017 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem (the 
“School”) was held on Wednesday, October 25, 2017 at 132 West 124th Street, New York, NY. 
The meeting was called to order at 6:04 p.m. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brousal 
Derek Fleming 
Brian Hamilton 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Allison Mayne Peters 
Andrew Popper 
Arthur Sadoff 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 

Others Present in Person: 
Brett Gallini 
Deyvis Salazar 
Michael Renda 
Amanda Bowman 
Starr Peoples 
Sherita Smith 

Ten (10) of the Thirteen (13) trustees were attendance in person and were present throughout 
the meeting and that constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Call to Order: 
PS called the meeting to order and invited public comment. No comments were 
received. She then presented on the School’s recently-completed financial audit, noting 
that a clean audit opinion will be delivered. A brief discussion ensued regarding two 
non-material points raised during the audit which will be addressed along with CSBM. 

2. Approval of minutes: 



  

          
          

 
    

 
            

            
                

 
      

 
          

      
                 
               
               
   

 
     

 
          

              
   

 
    

 
          

               
       

 
    

 
             

             
      

 
  

 
                

             
 

A motion to approve the minutes from the September 27, 2017 board meeting was 
made by GB and seconded by AS and unanimously approved. 

3. Nominating/Governance Committee Report 

BH reported on the Committee’s recent meeting and discussions around options for 
Board development, capacities/core competencies that the Board may want to consider adding 
to the Board with the nominating and election of new Trustees. A discussion ensued. 

4. Election of New Trustee. 

Having completed all required background check-related submissions required by the 
New York State Education Department, consistent with the resolution attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, a motion was made by AP, seconded by DF and unanimously approved to elect Starr 
Peoples to the Board of Trustees as the new parent representative. Allison Maine-Peters was 
sincerely thanked for her years of tremendous service as parent representative on the Board of 
Trustees. 

5. Report on School Gala 

JK presented on the recently-held fundraising Gala and reported that $43,405 was 
raised from the event. A discussion ensued related to fundraising and development efforts 
going forward. 

6. Executive Director Report. 

BS delivered the Executive Director Report. A discussion then ensued regarding the 
School’s real estate development updates and search for a new potential facility for the Bronx 
school in anticipation of receiving a charter. 

7. Principal Presentation. 

As part of the Board’s commitment to professional development and to showcase the 
tremendous work done by the School’s staff, DS and MR presented on student critical thinking 
skills and a discussion ensued. 

8. Adjournment. 

There being no further business, a motion was made by CS and seconded by DF to 
adjourn the meeting and was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 



  

  
 
 

  
   

 
 

             
             

                  
        

                               
 
 

  
       

 
           

             
            

                 
            

          
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem, a New 
York education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the 
above is a true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of 
the said corporation held on October 25, 2017. 
Dated: 2017 

EXHIBIT A
!
ELECTION OF STARR PEOPLES AS A TRUSTEE
!

The NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL: HARLEM Board of Trustees, having conducted a 
thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required and having discovered no State or 
federal criminal history, or having provided such history to SED if found, has voted to select 
STARR PEOPLES as a final candidate to its Board of Trustees, pending approval by the SED, with 
a term that corresponds with her tenure as President of the NCSH Parents’ Association. The 
resolution approving STARR PEOPLES is formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 



   
       

   
 

           
           

           
 

    
  

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
 

  
 

     
 

 
   
  

   
  

  
  

 
           

         
 

    
 

             
        

   
 

  
 

              
   

 

Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

November 15, 2017 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
School: Harlem (the “School”) was held on Wednesday, October 25, 2017 at 132 West 124th 

Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:10 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brousal 
Brian Hamilton 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Andrew Popper 
Arthur Sadoff 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 
Adam Rashid 
Jefferson Hughes 
Ruth Meyler 
Starr Peoples 

Trustees Absent with prior notice: 
Derek Fleming participated by telephone. 

Others in Attendance: 
Amanda Bowman 
Brett Gallini 
Michael Renda 
Deyvis Salazar 
Sherita Smith 

Twelve (12) of the thirteen (13) trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the 
meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment. No comments were received. It 
was noted that the Regents formally approved Neighborhood Charter School: Bronx and 
congratulations were passed to all. 

2. Minutes 

A motion was made by JH and seconded by GB to approve the minutes from the October 25, 
2017 Board meeting and was unanimously approved. 



 
    

 
          

          
          

            
          

          
       

 
   

 
          

              
          

          
 

  
 

          
   

 
    

 
             

              
             

         
         

 
  

 
           

         
 

 

3. Accountability Committee Report 

GB, JK and AP recently visited the School to discuss assessment and data collection with 
Principal Salazar. GB presented on recent discussions and a desire by the School administration 
to have Board members visit the School. JK led a brief discussion on student-related data and 
use of the dashboard. AP discussed recent events in other schools (e.g. food allergies and lock 
downs) and a discussion ensued regarding role of Accountability Committee, if any, in school 
safety measures. Mr. Gallini and Ms. Smith discussed school procedures and preparedness and 
training received by staff and drills conducted with students. 

4. Network & Facilities Update 

Mr. Gallini and Ms. Smith provided updates on potential real estate options for Neighborhood 
Charter School- Bronx location, work done at the NW Campus facility, filling the business 
manager position, bonus potential for instructional staff, reporting mechanisms for staff with 
complaints and a School “swag” store. A discussion ensued. 

5. Board Governance 

BH and CS presented to the Board on governance/oversight versus management. A robust 
discussion ensued. 

6. Finance Committee Report 

AR presented a general financial update. The School’s enrollment is currently 465 students, 70 
of which are ASD students. Both numbers put the School ahead of budget. The School received 
a clean audit, which was filed with the State by the November 1st deadline. The transition of the 
School’s bank accounts to Signature Bank has been completed. Looking ahead, the School may 
consider bringing more of the finance function in-house. 

7. Adjournment 

There being no further business, CS moved to adjourn and AR seconded a motion to adjourn the 
meeting, which was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 pm. 



 
 
 
  

   
 
 

           
           

                
    

                               
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem, a New 
York education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the above 
is a true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the said 
corporation held on November 15, 2017. 
Dated: 2017 



   
       

   
 

           
            

           
 

    
  

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

     
 

 
  

 
   
  

   
  

  
 

           
         

 
    

 
             

 
    

 
              

   
 
 
 
 

Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

December 13, 2017 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
School: Harlem (the “School”) was held on Wednesday, December 13, 2017 at 132 West 124th 

Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brousal 
Derek Fleming 
Jefferson Hughes 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Starr Peoples 
Andrew Popper 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 
Adam Rashid 

Trustees Absent (with prior notice): 
Brian Hamilton 
Ruth Meyler 
Arthur Sadoff 

Others in Attendance: 
Amanda Bowman 
Brett Gallini 
Stephen Powers (Transwestern) 
Sherita Smith 

Ten (10) of the thirteen (13) trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the 
meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment. No comments were received. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by PS and seconded by JH to approve the minutes from the November 15, 
2017 Board meeting and was unanimously approved. 



     
 

            
            

             
              

        
 

    
 
 

           
       

         
          

          
             

               
             

         
 

     
 

        
            

              
            

            
            

           
           
            

           
          

 
  

 
            

        
 

 

3. Approval of NCS-B Planning Year 

With the Neighborhood Charter School-Bronx eligible to begin operations in the fall of 2018, it 
has been the leadership team and the Board’s intention- which is in the best interest of the 
School- to elect to take a planning year (the “Planning Year”) and open to students in the fall of 
2019 to provide opportunity to secure real estate, hire staff and recruit students. A motion was 
made by CS and seconded by AR to approve the Planning Year and was unanimously approved. 

4. Facilities Update- Harlem 

Mr. Gallini and Ms. Smith provided updates on the 124th Street and NW campus locations with 
respect to maintenance and construction needs. A discussion ensued regarding the need to 
extend the leases at these locations for another year and possibly seek co-located space to 
accommodate an additional while the 691 St. Nicholas facility is completed. Trustees and 
School leadership also discussed the feasibility of a mid-year move if 691 St. Nicholas is 
completed after the start of the 2018-19 school year. A motion was made by JH and seconded by 
GB to a) renew the 124th Street and NW Campus leases for an additional year; and b) if 691 St. 
Nicholas is not ready by July 31, 2018, then the School will not take possession until July 1, 
2019 (which the developer has previously agreed to). The motion was unanimously approved. 

5. Facilities Update- the Bronx 

Mr. Gallini, Ms. Smith and Stephen Powers from Transwestern presented on the Civic Builders-
411 Wales proposed facility and a status update on the negotiation of lease terms and 
engagement of legal counsel with charter school real estate experience. A discussion ensued. A 
motion was made by DF and seconded by CS to approve the term sheet for 411 Wales and was 
unanimously approved. A motion was made by DF and seconded by SP to engage Cole Schotz, 
P.C. as the School’s legal counsel for the 411 Wales lease and the motion was unanimously 
approved. With the main business terms of the 411 Wales transactions approved by the Board 
and with minor modifications still required to be negotiated in the lease, it was suggested that the 
Board designate certain individuals to work with the School’s legal counsel to finalize the lease. 
JK and JH moved to appoint Ms. Soussloff and Mr. Schneider to work with legal counsel and 
School leadership to complete the lease and the motion was unanimously approved. 

6. Adjournment 

There being no further business, CS moved to adjourn and AR seconded a motion to adjourn the 
meeting which was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjorned at 7:32 pm. 



 
 
 

  
  

 
 

           
           

                
    

   
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem, a New 
York education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the above 
is a true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the said 
corporation held on December 13, 2017. 
Dated: January 24, 2018 



   
       

   
 

           
             

           
 

    
 
 

 
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

 
     

 
  

 
   

   
 

  
  

  
  

 
           

         
 

     
 

            
          

              
         

 
    

 
             

   

Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

January 24, 2018 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
School: Harlem (the “School”) was held on Wednesday, January 24, 2018 at 132 West 124th 

Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:04 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Derek Fleming 
Brian Hamilton 
Jefferson Hughes 
Justena Kavanagh 
Ruth Meyler 
Starr Peoples 
Andrew Popper 
Adam Rashid 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 

Trustees Absent (with prior notice): 
Everardo Jefferson 
Arthur Sadoff 

Others in Attendance: 
Brett Gallini 
Allison Roznick 
Deyvis Salazar 
Sherita Smith 
Naureen Kheraj 
Walter Rendon 

Ten (10) of the thirteen (13) trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the 
meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment. No comments were received. 
Ms. Soussloff recognized the planned resignation of Ruth Meyler and thanked her for her long-
standing service to the School as a Founder and Trustee. It was also announced that that Starr 
Peoples was approved as a Trustee by NYSED. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by JH and seconded by JK to approve the minutes from the December 13, 
2017 Board meeting and was unanimously approved. 



 
 
 
 

   
 

           
         

          
              

            
               

              
 
 

      
 

         
           
      

 
    

 
            

                
         
       

       
 

 
   

 
          

            
        

 
  

 
           

         
             

            
 

 
 
 

3. Network Updates 

Mr. Gallini presented on Network staff updates and introduced Director of Talent Allison 
Rosnick and projects she will undertake. Ms. Rosnick introduced herself and briefly presented 
on her role and plans. Mr. Gallini also announced that Michael Renda was offered and accepted 
job as Principal of NCS-Bronx. Mr. Gallini also discussed needs for a facility manager now that 
multiple properties will be operated. On the staffing front at NCS-Harlem, Mr. Gallini 
announced that one teacher is leaving (spouse being transferred out of state) and that role will be 
filled swiftly. Mr. Gallini also gave a quick update on condition of current facilities. 

4. Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee 

Ms. Soussloff briefly introduced Walter Rendon- an education consultant and trustee on another 
charter school’s Board- who is being considered as a Trustee and was present this evening to 
observe the Board meeting. 

5. Real Estate Updates 

Ms. Smith presented on 411 Wales lease negotiations that are in progress. A discussion ensued 
regarding the process, lease terms still open and concerns.  DF, JH moved for the approval of a 
$1 million letter of credit required by the 411 Wales Landlord and the motion was unanimously 
approved. A discussion then ensued re: 691 St. Nicholas anticipated delivery date and 
contingency plans if the facility is not ready by July 2018. 

6. Finance Report 

Mr. Rashid presented a finance committee report, noting that the Finance Committee met on 
Monday, January 22, 2018. It was noted that a budget for NCS-Bronx has been built-out and 
puts NCS-Bronx is a strong financial position. 

7. Dashboard 

Mr. Salazar presented the Dashboard, noting that Mastery (exam preparation) has begun, 
demographics and enrollment remain constant and as anticipated, the attendance rate for January 
is slightly down due to extreme cold weather and some families traveling with students out of the 
country, and Math and ELA interim assessment data will be ready shortly. A brief discussion 
ensued. 



 
  

 
           

         
 

 

 
 
 

  
   

 
 

           
           

                
    

 
    

 
 
 

8. Adjournment 

There being no further business, CS moved to adjourn and AR seconded a motion to adjourn the 
meeting which was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem, a New 
York education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the above 
is a true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the said 
corporation held on January 24, 2018. 

Dated: February 28, 2018 



 

  

   
       

   
 

           
             

           
 

    
  

 
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
     

 
 

 
   

   
  
  

 
           

         
 

     
 

             
 

    
 

             
    

 
 
 
 
 

Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

February 28, 2018 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
School: Harlem (the “School”) was held on Wednesday, February 28, 2018 at 132 West 124th 

Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:01 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brousal 
Everardo Jefferson 
Jefferson Hughes 
Justena Kavanagh 
Ruth Meyler 
Starr Peoples 
Andrew Popper 
Adam Rashid 
Arthur Sadoff 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 

Trustees Absent (with prior notice): 
Derek Fleming 
Brian Hamilton 

Others in Attendance: 
Brett Gallini 
Sherita Smith 
Walter Rendon 

Eleven (11) of the thirteen (13) trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the 
meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment. No comments were received. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by JH and seconded by AS to approve the minutes from the January 24, 
2018 Board meeting and was unanimously approved. 

{00033823.1}
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3. Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee 

Ms. Meyler presented Walter Rendon as a candidate for election to serve as a Trustee. 
Mr. Rendon’s education experience, work in the South Bronx and experience with 
educational policy was presented. The Committee recommended Mr. Rendon for 
nomination as a Trustee. A discussion ensued. A motion was made by JH and seconded 
by AS to approve the following resolution to nominate Mr. Rendon as a Trustee: 

The Neighborhood Charter Schools’ Board of Trustees, having conducted a 
thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required and having 
discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided such history to 
SED if found, has voted to select Walter Rendon as a final candidate to its Board 
of Trustees, with a term expiring at the annual meeting in June 2021, pending 
approval by SED. The resolution approving Walter Rendon is formally adopted 
upon SED’s approval. 

The motion was unanimously approved. 

4. Accountability Committee 

Ms. Brewer presented a report from the Accountability committee. The Dashboard was 
viewed and a discussion amongst Trustees and School leadership ensued regarding 
student progress and engagement. Ms. Brewer also noted that she and Ms. Kavanagh 
visited the 691 St. Nicholas construction site and observed construction in progress. 

5. Real Estate Updates 

Mr. Gallini and Ms. Smith presented on real estate matters. At 691 St. Nicholas, the 
developer shared that the property should be ready for occupancy by 
November/December 2018, but that NCS-H will not occupy until July 1, 2019. While 
691 St. Nicholas is being completed, in addition to the NW Campus and Central Campus 
buildings, space in 500 W. 138th Street (a NYCDOE building; to be referred to as the 
“Northwest Annex”) has been secured to house the 3rd grade for the 2018-19 school year, 
as well as provide office space for the Network staff, with the plan to move the entire 
School + Pre-K (and Network staff) into the 691 St. Nicholas location as of July 1, 2019. 
It was noted that lease extensions for the Central and NW campuses have been exercised. 
A timeline and status update was also provided for the to-be-constructed NCS-B campus 
at 411 Wales. A discussion ensued. 

6. Celebration of Ruth Meyler 

{00033823.1}
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A video and comments were presented to recognize Ms. Meyler as a founder of the 
School and for her dedication and service since prior to the School’s inception. 

7. Adjournment 

There being no further business, CS moved to adjourn and AR seconded a motion to adjourn the 
meeting which was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter Schools, a New York 
education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the above is a 
true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the said 
corporation held on February 28, 2018. 

Dated: March 28, 2018 

{00033823.1}
!



  
        

  
 

           
            

        
 

    
  

 
  

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
 

   
   

 
 

  
 

  
  

 
            

             
 

     
 

             
             

   
 

   
 

           
              

Neighborhood Charter Schools 
Notes from of a Meeting of the Board Trustees 

March 28, 2018 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
Schools (“NCS”) was held on Wednesday, March 28, 2018 at 132 West 124th Street, New York, 
NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:06 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brousal 
Jefferson Hughes 
Andrew Popper 
Arthur Sadoff 
Patricia Soussloff 

Trustees Absent: 
Derek Fleming 
Brian Hamilton 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Starr Peoples 
Adam Rashid 
Cliff Schneider 

Others in Attendance: 
Brett Gallini 
Naureen Kheraj 
Lindsey Mattingly 
Walter Rendon 
Alison Rosnick 
Deyvis Salazar 
Sherita Smith 

Five (5) of the twelve (12) trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the 
meeting, which did not constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff noted the absence of a quorum and stated that, as a result, no business would be 
conducted or board action taken. Agenda items requiring board action will be taken up at the 
April board meeting. 

2. Network Updates 

NCSH: Mr. Gallini presented the NCS organization structure for the 2018-2019 school year and 
announced all of the school leaders. He briefly described a new middle school advisory program 



           
                  

      
 

         
          

 
           

     
 

   
 

           
          

        
           

  
 

  
 

      

to be overseen by Ms. Buck and a high school placement counseling program to be run by Ms. 
Bowman. The School will add a 4th class of third graders as there is adequate space in the Annex 
space on 138th Street. Discussion ensued. 

Mr. Gallini gave a quick update on NCSH facilities, noting building issues in the Northwest 
campus. Mr. Gallini also provided updates on the construction of NCSH’s new campus. 

NCSB: Mr. Gallini presented exterior and interior projections of NCSB and elaborated on the 
state of the project. Discussion ensued. 

3. Principal Update 

NCSH: Mr. Salazar described the academic preparation being undertaken for the upcoming 
state tests in ELA and Math. Mr. Salazar presented interim assessments results for Kindergarten 
through sixth grades and provided ELA action plans for several third, fourth, fifth, and sixth 
grade classrooms. Mr. Salazar discussed upcoming events for the students, including sports 
tournaments and pep rallies. 

4. Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 pm. 



  
       

   
 

           
             

            
 

    
  

 
 

 
  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

   
 

  
  

 
          

           
 

     
 

            
          

              
     

 
    

 
               

    
 
 

Neighborhood Charter Schools 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

April 25, 2018 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
Schools (the “Education Corporation” or “NCS”) was held on Wednesday, April 25, 2018 at 132 
West 124th Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:04 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brewer 
Derek Fleming 
Brian Hamilton 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Andrew Popper 
Adam Rashid 
Arthur Sadoff 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 

Trustees Absent: 
Jefferson Hughes 
Starr Peoples 

Others in Attendance: 
Brett Gallini 
Allison Roznick 
Deyvis Salazar 
Naureen Kheraj 

Ten (10) of the twelve (12) seated trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout 
the meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment. No comments were received. 
Ms. Soussloff recognized the planned resignation of Ruth Meyler and thanked her for her long-
standing service to the School as a Founder and Trustee. It was also announced that that Starr 
Peoples was approved by NYSED. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by AP and seconded by AS to approve the minutes from the February 28, 
2018 Board meeting and was unanimously approved. 



 
 

     
 

           
     

 
   

 
           

            
           

          
          

         
             
     

 
   

 
           

     
 

    
 

              
           

            
          

         
           

         
            

             
       

 
   

 
          

         
          

       
          

            
              

           

3. Approval of Form 990 

A motion was made by AR and seconded by AP to approve the Education Corporation’s FY 
2018 Form 990 and it was unanimously approved. 

4. Finance Report 

Mr. Rashid reported on the Finance Committee’s recent meeting. It was noted that current 
academic year’s enrollment was four (4) students less than budgeted. Mr. Gallini provided 
details on student departures. A brief discussion ensued. Mr. Rashid also discussed the new 
financial management platform which will enable growth and the production of more specific 
financial reports as the Education Corporation’s financial management systems morphs with the 
addition of the Bronx school. Mr. Rashid also noted that the Education Corporation’s cash 
position is strong and will put NCS in a strong place with the move into 691 St. Nicholas and the 
opening of the Bronx school in 2019. 

5. Anti-Harassment Policy 

Mr. Gallini presented on revisions to the Anti-Harassment Policy, noting that additional folks to 
whom complaints can be reported has been added. 

6. Real Estate Updates 

Ms. Gallini presented updates on all three (3) buildings. With respect to 691 St. Nicholas, staff 
is working with project managers and the developer to reflect a July 2019 rent commencement 
date, which will be reflected in a Lease amendment. Staff and the Finance Committee are also 
working to establish a budget to recommend to the Board for certain projects that will be 
completed prior to July 2019 at the Education Corporation’s expense (e.g. certain signage, 
scoreboard in the gym, lockers, etc.). With respect to the Bronx property (411 Wales), the 
property has been approved by the Board of Standards and Appeals for a zoning variance to 
permit School use. The temporary co-tenant has been identified (The New American Charter 
School). With respect to the NYCDOE space for 2018-19 for Grade 3, the Education 
Corporation has signed an MOU with the NYCDOE. 

7. Teaching Fellows Program 

Ms. Roznick presented on her role as Director of Talent Management and current projects, which 
are currently focused on hiring, noting that hiring for 2018-19 is going well. Ms. Roznick also 
presented on the process for hiring and different platforms used to recruit candidates. Ms. 
Roznick also presented on the new partnership with Relay Graduate School of Education to help 
staff members pursue masters and certification while teaching during the day. The Education 
Corporation will pay for one-half of teachers’ tuition at Relay which will be treated as a loan that 
the teachers need to repay if they do not work for NCS a period of three years (2 years enrolled 
in Relay and the 1 year thereafter). A discussion ensued. 



 
 

    
 

          
          

            
     
 

   
 

           
      

            
           

 
  

 
           

         
 

 

 
 
 
  

   
 
 

           
           

                
    

 
    

 
 
 

8. Middle School Advisory 

Mr. Salazar and Mr. Gallini presented on the implementation of the advisory program where 
students can share in small groups and learn tools to express social and emotional struggles 
common to middle school students. Program will be led by NCS’ social worker. A discussion 
ensued. 

9. Executive Session 

A motion was made by GB and seconded by AS to enter into executive session to discuss 
employment matters and was unanimously approved, and the Board entered into executive 
session. During executive session, a vote was taken to approve the compensation structure for 
the Executive Director for the FY 2019 School year. 

10. Adjournment 

There being no further business, CS moved to adjourn and AR seconded a motion to adjourn the 
meeting which was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:43 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem, a New 
York education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the above 
is a true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the said 
corporation held on April 25, 2018. 

Dated: May 23, 2018 



  
       

  
 

           
             

            
 

    
  

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

 
  

  
 

   
   

 
 

  
 

          
           

 
     

 
             

 
    

 
               

  
 

      
 

           
 

Neighborhood Charter Schools 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

May 23, 2018 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
Schools (the “Education Corporation” or “NCS”) was held on Wednesday, April 25, 2018 at 132 
West 124th Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:04 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brewer 
Derek Fleming 
Brian Hamilton 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Adam Rashid 
Arthur Sadoff 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 

Trustees Absent: 
Jefferson Hughes 
Starr Peoples 
Andrew Popper 

Others in Attendance: 
Brett Gallini 
Naureen Kheraj 
Allison Roznick 
Sherita Smith 

Nine (9) of the twelve (12) seated trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout 
the meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment. No comments were received. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by GB and seconded by EJ to approve the minutes from the April 25, 2018 
Board meeting and was unanimously approved. 

3. Preview of June Annual Meeting 

Ms. Soussloff provided an overview of the upcoming meeting. A brief discussion ensued. 



    
 

          
       

 
   

 
        

           
             

     
         

 
     

 
         

        
          
 

    
 

       
      

 
     

 
      

 
   

 
        

        
 

  
 

           
         

 
 

4. Board Self Evaluation 

Ms. Soussloff noted that Trustees are still returning their self-evaluation forms and when all 
have been submitted, results will be collated and circulated. 

5. Development Discussion 

Ms. Soussloff led a discussion regarding engagement and fundraising efforts that have been 
suggested by Trustees. A discussion ensued. It was also noted by Mr. Gallini that Board of 
Regents Chancellor Rosa and Regent Meade will be visiting the School on May 24th. A general 
discussion ensued regarding proactively sharing information about the School through 
communications with outreach to third parties, the press and other stakeholders. 

6. 2018-19 Draft Budget Presentation 

Ms. Smith provided a detailed presentation on revenue and expense projections for FY 2019. 
Trustees also discussed marketing efforts to enhance family outreach to generate interest in the 
Schools and enhance brand development in Harlem and the Bronx. A discussion ensued. 

7. Real Estate Updates 

Ms. Smith and Mr. Gallini presented on updates regarding and repairs/renovation to all three 
properties for NCS: Harlem. 

8. Executive Director Evaluation Process 

Mr. Schneider presented on the recently-created evaluation process. 

9. Executive Session 

CS moved and PS seconded motion to enter into executive session to discuss a personnel 
manner. Motion was unanimously approved and the Board entered into executive session. 

10. Adjournment 

There being no further business, CS moved to adjourn and EV seconded a motion to adjourn the 
meeting which was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:59 pm. 



 
 
 

  
   

 
 

          
            

              
    

 
    

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter Schools, a New York 
education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the above is a 
true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the said 
corporation held on May 23, 2018. 

Dated: June __, 2018 



  
       

   
 

           
             

            
 

    
  

 
 

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
   

   
  
  

 
 

          
           

 
     

 
            
         

 
    

 
               

  
 
 
 
 

Neighborhood Charter Schools 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board Trustees 

June 27, 2018 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Neighborhood Charter 
Schools (the “Education Corporation” or “NCS”) was held on Wednesday, June 27, 2018 at 132 
West 124th Street, New York, NY. The meeting was called to order at 6:07 PM. 

Trustees Present in Person: 
Gail Brousal 
Brian Hamilton 
Everardo Jefferson 
Justena Kavanagh 
Starr Peoples 
Andrew Popper 
Adam Rashid 
Arthur Sadoff 
Cliff Schneider 
Patricia Soussloff 

Trustees Absent: 
Derek Fleming 
Jefferson Hughes 

Others in Attendance: 
Brett Gallini 
Victor Rios 
Sherita Smith 
Downey Tang 

Nine (9) of the twelve (12) seated trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout 
the meeting, which constituted a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

1. Welcome and Public Comment 

Ms. Soussloff began the meeting and invited public comment. No comments were received. 
Ms. Soussloff also introduced NCS’ new data manager Downey Tang. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by JK and seconded by AS to approve the minutes from the May 23, 2018 
Board meeting and was unanimously approved. 



     
              

           
          

          
   

              
     

        
           

       
    

              
       

            
          

        
 

    
 

            
         

           
            

                
          

 
            

        
        

            
      

   
           

             
        
       

              
         

   
 

     
 

           
           

           

3.	 Nominating and Governance Report 
a.	 Election of Officers. The same slate of officers currently serving the Board- Ms. 

Soussloff as Chair, Jeff Hughes as Vice Chair, Cliff Schneider as Secretary and 
Adam Rashid as Treasurer was proposed for re-election for FY 2019. A motion 
was made by GB and seconded by AS to approve this slate of officers and was 
unanimously approved. 

b.	 Committee & Task Force Assignments. A slate of committee members for the 
Finance, Accountability, Nominating and Governance Committees, Evaluation 
Task Force and Real Estate Task Force (slates as attached hereto as Schedule 1 
and incorporated by reference herein) was proposed for election. A motion was 
made by AP and seconded by GB to approve the above-mentioned committee and 
task-force assignments and was unanimously approved. 

c.	 Re-Election of Trustee. With the terms for Trustees Ms. Brousal, Mr. Hughes, 
Ms. Kavanagh and Mr. Schneider expiring, each such Trustee has expressed a 
desire to be re-elected for another three (3) year term. A motion to re-elect 
Trustees Ms. Brousal, Mr. Hughes, Ms. Kavanagh and Mr. Schneider was made 
by AS and seconded by GB and unanimously approved. 

4.	 Finance Committee Report 

Mr. Rashid reported on the Finance Committee’s recent meeting. It was reported that CSBM 
and Ms. Smith have been working on implementing the new financial management software. 
Mr. Rashid reported that the Finance committee recommends the approval of the FY 2019 
budget and highlighted the one-time deficit that the NCS is projected to experience in relation to 
NCS’ plans to move into three new facilities over the next year as well as the need to replace 
certain technology that has aged-out (e.g. SmartBoards). A discussion ensued. 

a.	 Approval of FY 2019 Budget. A motion to approve the FY 2019 for NCS 
budget (including such “sub-budgets” for each of NCS: Harlem and NCS: Bronx 
campuses) was made by JK and seconded by GB and unanimously approved. 

b.	 Approval of Signature Bank Transfers. A motion to approve the transfer of 
banking relationship was made by AP and seconded by GB and unanimously 
approved. 

c.	 Approval of Increase of Facilities Reserve. With several moves planned for 
this year into new facilities, it is the position of the Finance Committee that the 
Facilities Reserve should be increased to include up to $1.5 million to cover 
expenses such as moving and relocation, renovations, equipment and a capital 
reserve as required by the NCS: Bronx sublease that NCS will incur (as per the 
budget) in FY 2019. A motion was made by SP and seconded by JK and 
unanimously approved. 

5.	 Report on NCS: Harlem 

Mr. Gallini presented a report on recent visits from the NYSED Board of Regents, 
status of construction at the St. Nicholas location, attendance at the National 
Charter Schools Conference and the organization chart for FY 2019. Mr. Gallini 



        
        
            

           
      

 
 

   
 

        
        

 
 

  
 

           
         

 
 

  
 
 

  
   

 
 

          
            

              
    

 
    

 

also presented on the plan to change the “T” in NCS’ LIGHT values to 
“Teamwork” and received positive feedback from the Board. Mr. Gallini also 
reviewed the number of staff that replied to the NYCDOE survey. A general 
discussion ensued. Mr. Gallini and Mr. Tang presented on End of Year student 
performance data and a discussion ensued. 

6. Executive Session 

CS moved and PS seconded motion to enter into executive session to discuss a personnel 
manner. Motion was unanimously approved and the Board entered into executive session. 

7. Adjournment 

There being no further business, CS moved to adjourn and PS seconded a motion to adjourn the 
meeting which was unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:31 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cliff Schneider, Secretary 

I, Cliff Schneider, the duly qualified Secretary of Neighborhood Charter Schools, a New York 
education corporation, do hereby certify that I prepared these Minutes, and that the above is a 
true and complete copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the said 
corporation held on June 27, 2018. 

Dated: July __, 2018 
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GDJEDJFJFDJJHFMFLFE@JHADFDJJGQEJ@AMMED 
MGDGQ@WJuEJSFLLJQG@GJHFMFLUJHDFEDHLUJEVEDG@ 
GQDGAJQGAGJGQEJ@AMMEDJGGJYEEBJBFDEDG@ 
EDJFJEHJFDHJEGDDEEGEHJSFGQJGQEJ@EQGGLW 
,ADGQEDMGDETJMEMPED@JGHJGQEJ6BEDFGFGD@ 
GEFMJSFLLJDEFEQJGAGJBED@GDFLLUJGGJEFEQJHFMFLU 
GVEDJGQEJ@AMMEDJGGJGHHEDJ@ABBGDGJFDH 
EGDGFDAGA@LUJJFAJEJGQEFDJFDGEDE@GJFDJDEGADDFDJ 
GQEJHGLLGSFDJJ@EQGGLJUEFDW 
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Entry	11	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator
Attrition
Created:	07/16/2018	•	Last	updated:	07/29/2018

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Instructions	for	completing	the	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables
Charter	schools	must	complete	the	tables	titled	2017-2018	Classroom	Teacher	and
Administrator	Attrition	to	report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing
during	the	2017-2018	school	year.	Please	provide	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of
staff	on	June	30,	2017;	the	FTE	for	any	departed	staff	from	July	1,	2017	through	June
30,	2018;	the	FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2017	through	June	30,	2018;	and	the
FTE	of	staff	added	in	newly	created	positions	from	July	1,	2017	through	June	30,	2018
using	the	tables	provided.

1.	Classroom	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	on
6/30/17

FTE	Classroom
Teachers
Departed	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Filling
Vacant	Positions
7/1/17	–	6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Added
in	New	Positions
7/1/17	-	6/30/18

FTE	of
Classroom
Teachers	on
6/3018

31 5 5 8 44

2.	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/17

FTE
Administrators
Departed	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Added	in	New
Positions	7/1/17
-	6/30/18

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/18

13 4 4 6 19
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3.	Tell	your	school's	story

Charter	schools	may	provide	additional	information	in	this	section	of	the	Annual
Report	about	their	respective	teacher	and	administrator	attrition	rates	as	some
teacher	or	administrator	departures	do	not	reflect	advancement	or	movement	within
the	charter	school	networks.	Schools	may	provide	additional	detail	to	reflect	a
teacher’s	advancement	up	the	ladder	to	a	leadership	position	within	the	network	or
an	administrator’s	movement	to	lead	a	new	network	charter	school.
	

(No	response)

4.	Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees	receive	clearance
through	the	NYSED	Office	of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)
prior	to	employment.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are	required	to
maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all
students,	charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of
individuals	who	have	been	denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been
terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for	clearance	in	the	TEACH
system.		
	
Have	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	system?
	

Yes

5.	For	perspective	or	current	employees	whose	clearance	has	been	denied,	have	you
terminated	their	employment	and	removed	them	from	the	TEACH	system?

Not	Applicable

Thank	you

http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/
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Entry	12	Uncertified	Teachers
Last	updated:	07/29/2018

FTE	Count	of	All	Teachers
(Certified	and	Uncertified)	as	of
6/30/18

44

FTE	Count	of	All	Certified
Teachers	as	of	6/30/18

14

Instructions	for	Reporting	Percent	of	Uncertified	Teachers
The	table	below	is	reflective	of	the	information	collected	through	the	online	portal	for
compliance	with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for	teaching	staff
qualifications.	Enter	the	relevant	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	count	of	teachers	in	each
column.	For	example,	a	school	with	20	full	time	teachers	and	5	half	time	teachers
would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	If	more	than	one	column	applies	to	a	particular
teacher,	please	select	one	column	for	the	FTE	count.	Please	do	not	include
paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	assistants.

FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	on	6/30/18,	and	each	uncertified	teacher	should	be
counted	only	once.

FTE	Count

1.	Total	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	(6-30-18) 30

2.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	at	least	three	years
of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary	classroom	teaching
experience	(6-30-18)

17

3.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are	tenured	or
tenure	track	college	faculty	(6-30-18) 0

4.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years	of	Teach
for	America	experience	(6-30-18) 1

5.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	exceptional
business,	professional,	artistic,	athletic,	or	military
experience	(6-30-18)

0

6.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	do	not	fit	into	any
of	the	prior	four	categories	(6-30-18) 12

Thank	you.
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NCSH Organization Matrix 2017-2018

Name Title Location Supervisor
Network Staff

Brett Gallini Executive Director Northwest Board of Trustees
Sherita Smith Chief Operating Officer Northwest Executive Director
Lindsey Mattingly Director of Special Education Central Harlem and Northwest Executive Director
Naureen Kheraj Network Fellow Northwest Executive Director
Victor Rios Business Manager Northwest Chief Operating Officer
Alison Rosnick Director of Talent Northwest Executive Director

School-Based Leadership
Deyvis Salazar Principal Central Harlem and Northwest Executive Director
Michael Renda Assistant Principal Northwest Executive Director
Kelly Scott Assistant Principal Central Harlem Principal

Directors
Nicholas Carton Director of School Culture Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Amanda L. Bowman Middle School Director Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH

Operations Team
Mahelia Mighty Director of Operations Central Harlem and Northwest Chief Operating Officer
Derrica Newman Operations Associate Central Harlem Director of Operations
Maxwell Polans Operations Associate Central Harlem Director of Operations
Nadia T. Brown Operations Associate Central Harlem Director of Operations
Johanna Rodriguez Operations Associate Northwest Director of Operations
Michelle Santos Operations Associate Northwest Director of Operations

Achievement and Curriculum
Laura Walsh Achievement Coach Central Harlem Principal
Celines Diaz Achievement Coach Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Rachelle Caiazzo Achievement Coach Northwest Assistant Principal: NW

Related Services and School Support
Lauren Edwards Speech-Language Pathologist Northwest Director of Special Education
Stephanie Hubbell Speech-Language Pathologist Northwest Director of Special Education
Sogol Shafiei Speech-Language Pathologist Central Harlem Director of Special Education
Athena Tahos Speech-Language Pathologist Central Harlem Director of Special Education
Laurie Nathan Clinical Psychologist Northwest Director of Special Education
Thanika Guerrier-Smith BRIDGE Teacher Central Harlem Director of Special Education
Annette Richards Food Service Central Harlem Director of Operations
Sammy Camacho Security Central Harlem Director of Operations
Vance Henry Associate Dean of Culture Northwest Assistant Principal: NW

Specials and Support Teachers
Marsha M. Dupiton Apprentice Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Shev’Vonne Bowman Assistant Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Tiffany R. Green Assistant Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Jasmine Adams Assistant Teacher Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Demetris Blunt Assistant Teacher Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Severo Vadi Assistant Teacher Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Alicia J. Etienne Middle School Assistant Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Michael Creech Middle School Assistant Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Patrick Nevada Middle School Assistant Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Uthman Ebrahim Dance Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Thayer Greenberg Performing Arts Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Nicole Hittner Visual Arts Teacher Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Sean Edwards Physical Education Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Hemwate Annie Mangroo Science Teacher Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Rachel Stotsky Science Teacher Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Christy Seeber Science Teacher Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH

Faculty
Krystal Mircovich Kindergarten Teacher (K-1: Determination) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Ashley Whaley Kindergarten Teacher (K-1: Determination) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Elizabeth Larkin Kindergarten Teacher (K-2: Unity) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Cara Rossi Kindergarten Teacher (K-2: Unity) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Cynthia Gerber Kindergarten Teacher (K-3: Courage) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Oluwakemi Oladosu Kindergarten Teacher (K-3: Courage) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Nicole McTaggart 1st Grade Teacher (1-1: Strength) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
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NCSH Organization Matrix 2017-2018

Name Title Location Supervisor
Elizabeth Yorey 1st Grade Teacher (1-1: Strength) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Azsa Parker 1st Grade Teacher (1-2: Integrity) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Brittany Moser 1st Grade Teacher (1-2: Integrity) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Kelly Ridenour 1st Grade Teacher (1-3: Ambition) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Stephani A. Eso 1st Grade Teacher (1-3: Ambition) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Alice Rajlai 2nd Grade Teacher (2-1: Resilience) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Rikki Zelkowitz 2nd Grade Teacher (2-1: Resilience) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Noelle Pagnozzi 2nd Grade Teacher (2-2: Honesty) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Grisleydi Torres 2nd Grade Teacher (2-2: Honesty) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Leilah Honarbakhsh 2nd Grade Teacher (2-3: Compassion) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Chelsea Williams 2nd Grade Teacher (2-3: Compassion) Northwest Assistant Principal: NW
Junie Pierre 3rd Grade Teacher (3-1: Confidence) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Michelina Tota 3rd Grade Teacher (3-1: Confidence) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
James P. Weindler 3rd Grade Teacher (3-2: Perseverance) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Warner Williams IV 3rd Grade Teacher (3-2: Perseverance) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Jennifer Buck 3rd Grade Teacher (3-3: Endurance) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Bianca Nuñez 3rd Grade Teacher (3-3: Endurance) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Luis Santana 4th Grade Teacher (4-1: Bravery) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Ashley Trotta 4th Grade Teacher (4-1: Bravery) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Emily Horkan 4th Grade Teacher (4-2 Honor) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Nicole Ringel 4th Grade Teacher (4-2 Honor) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Myrializ Serrano 4th Grade Teacher (4-3: Dignity) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Sarah Johnston 4th Grade Teacher (4-3: Dignity) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Keisha Harrison 5th Grade ELA Teacher (5-1: ELA) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Lauren Carey 5th Grade ELA Teacher (5-1: ELA) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Ariel Ortiz 5th Grade Math Teacher (5-2: Math) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Kathleen McCann 5th Grade Math Teacher (5-2: Math) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Michael O'Grady Middle School Science Teacher (5-3: Science) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Morgan Bauch Middle School Science Teacher (5-3: Science) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Krystal Wells 6th Grade ELA Teacher (6-1: ELA) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Rachel Rountree Hiew 6th Grade ELA Teacher (6-1: ELA) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Yoonhwa Choi 6th Grade Math Teacher (6-2: Math) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Hannah Painter 6th Grade Math Teacher (6-2: Math) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Lars O. Edeen III Middle School History Teacher (6-3: History) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH
Leila F. Nabizadeh Middle School History Teacher (6-3: History) Central Harlem Assistant Principal: CH



 

 
Teacher PD/School Closed 1st and Last Day of School School Closed Teacher PD/Half-Day (12 PM) State Exam 

Neighborhood Charter School: Harlem | 2018-2019 Instructional Calendar 

13-24     Teacher PD 
27          1st Day of School 
27-31     Half-Day (K Only) 
 
 

 
 
5 School Days 

AUGUST ‘18 
S M T W Th F S 
   1 2 3 4 
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31  
       

 

 FEBRUARY ‘19 
S M T W Th F S 
     1 2 
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28   
       

 

6 Teacher PD/Half-Day 
18-22 Midwinter Recess 
 
 
 
 
 
 
15 School Days 

     
3         Labor Day 
12       Teacher PD/Half-Day 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19 School Days 

SEPTEMBER ‘18 
S M T W Th F S 
      1 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30       

 

 MARCH ‘19 
S M T W Th F S 
     1 2 
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31       

 

6 Teacher PD/Half-Day 
15         Half-Day 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21 School Days 

     
8 Columbus Day  
26         Parent Conferences 
31         Teacher PD/Half-Day 
 
 
 
 
 
22 School Days 

OCTOBER ‘18 
S M T W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    
       

 

 APRIL ‘19 
S M T W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30     
       

 

2-3    ELA Exam (Gr. 3-7) 
12      Parent Conferences (K-2) 
17      Teacher PD/Half-Day 
19      School Closed 
 
 
 
 
21 School Days 

     
7 Teacher PD/Half-Day 
21         Half-Day 
22-23 Thanksgiving Day 
 
 
 
 
 
20 School Days 

NOVEMBER ‘18 
S M T W Th F S 

    1 2 3 
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30  

       
 

 MAY ‘19 
S M T W Th F S 
   1 2 3 4 
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31  
       

 

1-2 Math Exam (Gr. 3-7) 
13-17  Spring Recess 
27  Memorial Day 
 
 
 
 
 
17 School Days 

     
5 Teacher PD/Half-Day 
21 Half-Day 
24-31 Winter Recess 
 
 
 
 
 
15 School Days 

DECEMBER ‘18 
S M T W Th F S 
      1 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 31      

 

 JUNE ‘19 
S M T W Th F S 
      1 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30       

 

11         Half-Day  
26 Last Day of School 

(Half-Day) 
 
 
 
 
 
18 School Days 

     
1          Winter Recess Cont’d 
9          Teacher PD/Half-Day 
21        M.L. King Day 
25        Parent Conferences 
 
 
 
 
21 School Days 

JANUARY ‘19 
S M T W Th F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30 31   
       

 

 JULY ‘19 
S M T W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    
       

 

4 Independence Day 
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